O© 00 N OO Ul B W N B

A D W W W W W WwWwwwWwWNDNDNDNDNNNDNNNMNNRPRRRPRRERERERRPRPRRERPRE
P O W 0O NO U B WNPFP O OO NOULPE WNPREOOOOWOWNO VA WDNDPEO

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent

Planning Board Meeting.

Town of Chester
Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday, July 12, 2017
Municipal Complex
Approved Minutes

Members Present

Brian Sullivan, Chairman

Evan Sederquest, Vice Chairman
Richard Snyder, Member
Elizabeth Richter, Member
Aaron Hume, Alternate Member

Members Absent
Michael Weider, Member
Cass Buckley, Ex-Officio

Staff Present:
Andrew Hadik, Planning Coordinator

Others Present at Various Times

Boyd Chivers, Depot Road, Candia

Thomas Giffen, Candia Planning Board, Chairman

Kevin Hatch, Cornerstone Survey Associates,

Elizabeth Kruse, New Boston Road, Candia, Candia Conservation Commission
Steph Landau, 662 Candia Road, Chester

Dennis Lewis, Candia Road Agent

Eric Mitchell, Eric Mitchell & Associates, Inc.

Deb Munson, Conservation Commission Member, 382 Haverhill Road
Royal Richardson, Chester School Board, Chairman

Sylvia von Aulock, SNHPC, Executive Director

Jacob Weider

Penny Williams, Tri-Town Times

Others unknown to this recording secretary

Chairman Sullivan called the meeting to order at 7:01 pm.

Chairman Sullivan noted that Mr. Hume is the alternate for Mr. Weider.



42
43

44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61

62
63
64
65
66
67
68

69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

Meeting Agenda

General Business

e Review and sign invoices and time sheet.

e Review and approve minutes for 7/5/17.

e Discuss solution to overcharge/undercharge.

e Discuss tradition of scheduling Public hearings to start at 7:45 pm.

7:45 PM - Appointments
None scheduled.
7:45 PM - Public Hearings

1. Subdivision application by the DAR Builders, LLC 305 Massabesic Street, Manchester, NH, 03104,
for a 60-lot subdivision of Map 11, Lots 30 & 30-7 off Crowley Road, Candia, NH.

2. Subdivision application by Tucker Bay Trust, 37 Coulthard Farm Road, Scarborough, ME, 04074, for
a 2-lot subdivision of Map 7, Lot 21 on Candia Road, Chester, NH.

Future Meeting Dates:

July 26, 2017 — Road Inventory presentation by SNHPC
August 2, 2017 — PH Pipit Estates Subdivision?

August 9, 2017-?

August 23, 2017-?

Review and approve minutes for 7/5/17

The Board reviewed the minutes from July 5, 2017. Line 2 was changed from “Planning Board Informational
Session” to “Planning Board Meeting.” Line 100 was changed to have the period moved to the outside of
the parenthesis. On line 165, the word “lead” was replaced with the word “led.”

Mr. Snyder made a motion to approve the minutes from July 5, 2017, as amended tonight; Vice Chairman
Sederquest seconded the motion. Motion approved, 4-0-1, Ms. Richter abstained.

Discuss solution to overcharge/undercharge.

Mr. Hadik explained to the Board that the information that they had reviewed at the last meeting regarding
the impact fee issue had one of the subdivision lots with an overcharge on a specificimpact fee. However,
he said the builder had not been charged for other impact fees. He wanted to verify he can request the
Finance Director and the Treasurer to apply that overcharge against the undercharges.

Mr. Hadik and the Board discussed the issue. He said he would draft a note to the finance director saying
that the Board agrees with the proposed remedy.



88
89
90
91
92
93
94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

Discuss tradition of scheduling Public hearings to start at 7:45 pm.

Mr. Hadik asked the Board what amount of latitude he had with scheduling the start times for Public
Hearings. After some discussion about the history of scheduling Board meetings and Public Hearings, Mr.
Hadik and the Board agreed that the Public Hearing could be scheduled for 7:15 pm.

FYI - July 26, 2017 — Road Inventory presentation by SNHPC

Mr. Hadik reminded the Board of the Road Surface Management System (RSMS) to be presented by SNHPC
at the July 26, 2017 meeting.

FYIl - Job Description

Mr. Hadik discussed with the Board the request by the BOS for a detailed job description of his position, and
other documentation. He will work on this as the current workload permits.

7:45 PM - Public Hearings

Subdivision application by the DAR Builders, LLC 305 Massabesic Street, Manchester, NH, 03104, for a 60-
lot subdivision of Map 11, Lots 30 & 30-7 off Crowley Road, Candia, NH.

Mr. Hadik noted that there are three packets of information relating to the subdivision application by the
DAR Builders, LLC 305 Massabesic Street, Manchester, NH, 03104, for a 60-lot subdivision of Map 11, Lots
30 & 30-7 off Crowley Road, Candia, NH. During the Board’s discussion of the paperwork, Ms. Von Aulock,
Executive Director for SNHPC, distributed to the Board a document, “Preliminary Comments on
Development of Regional Impact — ‘Tanglewood’ (Crowley Woods) Subdivision.”

Mr. Snyder made a motion to accept the application for subdivision approval by the DAR Builders, LLC 305
Massabesic Street, Manchester, NH, 03104, for a 60-lot subdivision of Map 11, Lots 30 & 30-7 off Crowley
Road, Candia, NH (represented by Eric Mitchell Associates) and open the Public Hearing; Ms. Richter
seconded the motion. Motion approved, 5-0-0.

Chairman Sullivan asked for discussion.

Mr. Snyder asked, by way of discussion, if Mr. Hadik could review in chronological order what Mr. Hadik has
noted about the application, for the record.

Mr. Mitchell came before the Board at 7:40 pm.

Mr. Snyder noted the Board is discussing whether to accept the application and what issues might be
pending beyond Mr. Adler’s review letters; he explained that they are getting into the record what still is
pending and then they are going to vote on whether to accept the application.

Mr. Hadik said that they have received a complete application. He said that the application has already
gone through a full engineering review. Mr. Hadik stated that the applicant’s engineer, Mr. Mitchell, was
proactive and took it to the Town engineer months before he was getting ready to submit it to the Planning
Board. He said that Mr. Mitchell had held prior conceptual discussions with the Board, and the Board had



135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

given him their feedback. Mr. Hadik explained that Mr. Mitchell went and designed the subdivision and
then submitted the plans and drainage report to Jeff Adler for review.

Mr. Hadik said that they have a package of letters in reverse chronological package that goes through all the
engineering reviews. He noted that from a Town ordinance standpoint everything that Mr. Adler typically
reviews has been answered to Mr. Adler’s satisfaction. Mr. Hadik added that notwithstanding that, there
are several other major issues the Planning Board must still consider. He said the subdivision application is
complete enough for acceptance, however, as the Board moves forward they will still have several major
issues to review. Mr. Hadik said the application is not something that can be remotely considered, in his
opinion, to be approved tonight or at the next couple of meetings. He noted the review process will
probably be a lengthy and protracted process.

Mr. Hadik informed the Board that they have three waiver requests from Mr. Mitchell. He added that they
have gotten much public feedback about traffic concerns from the informational session held in Town, as
well as, the Town of Candia’s Planning Board meeting that must be addressed. Mr. Hadik said there are half
a dozen significant traffic concerns; he stressed that there must be a traffic study. He said that they have
just received a five-page letter that is just a preliminary review by the Southern New Hampshire Planning
Commission (SNHPC.) He noted that the SNHPC has been notified officially by both Candia and Chester’s
Planning Boards that both Towns believe this is a subdivision of regional impact. Mr. Hadik explained that
they must work through that process, adding that there are additional questions (issues) raised by the five-
page review letter from the SNHPC.

Mr. Hadik gave a copy of the SNHPC preliminary review letter to Mr. Mitchell.

Mr. Hadik added that the Candia Planning Board has requested, both formally and informally, to have joint
meetings to review this subdivision. He noted that the Chester Planning Board also has to hear back from
the Chester Fire Chief and the Chester Police Chief about any issues about providing services. Mr. Hadik
said that there has been a preliminary response from the Chester School Board; he said that the School
Board has additional questions, and that they also support the need for a traffic impact study. Mr. Hadik
noted that there are many documents that have come in very recently which the Planning Board must
review, including the 15-page Candia Planning Board meeting minutes. He said that this meeting is
obviously going to be continued, noting that there is a long laundry list, including answering the questions in
the Candia Planning Board minutes about the RSA discussing the scattered and premature development.
Mr. Hadik suggested that the Board review with the Town'’s land use attorney by asking for some case law
to help them understand the RSA better.

Chairman Sullivan said that he agrees.

Chairman Sullivan asked if there was any more discussion. He called for a vote on Mr. Snyder’s motion to
accept and open. Motion approved, 5-0-0.

The Public Hearing was opened at 7:49pm.

Mr. Mitchell distributed plan sets to the Board.



180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

Mr. Snyder asked Mr. Mitchell if he had presented this subdivision to the Candia Planning Board and if they
were the same set of plans. Mr. Mitchell said he had presented this to the Candia Planning Board and that
the plans were similar.

Mr. Mitchell introduced himself, adding that he is here on behalf of DAR Builders.

Mr. Mitchell reviewed the process to date, noting that they have gone before both Chester and Candia
Planning Boards at various times dating back to last year. He said that this is the first Public Hearing in
Chester.

Mr. Mitchell explained that they have one lot in Candia, which was reviewed by the Candia Planning Board.
He said they submitted for a minor subdivision but because the Candia Board determined that it would be
an application of regional impact, they decided it would be a major subdivision. Mr. Mitchell said that they
must refile and go back to the Candia Board. He said that that process is a little bit longer, there is a
preliminary process that must be acted on first and then it goes to file. Mr. Mitchell stated that everyone is
on notice that that process is on-going.

Mr. Mitchell said that they have decided to have the traffic study performed, which is in the process of
being done.

Chairman Sullivan asked for clarification on the Candia meeting. He asked Mr. Mitchell if the Candia
Planning Board asked for the traffic study because of how the one lot in Candia relates to all of this
(Chairman Sullivan indicated the set plans). Mr. Michell said that the front page of the plans shows the
whole subdivision with the 60 lots. He said that everyone knows that all the traffic from the subdivision will
exit on Crowley Road in Candia. Mr. Mitchell explained that there was a lot of discussion about the traffic
and Crowley Road, but, from a technical standpoint we did need subdivision approval for that one three-
acre lot in Candia. He said that the bigger thing is the access from these lots in Chester onto Crowley Road
in Candia.

Mr. Snyder asked if had they not had the one-acre lot, would they still have had to go before the Candia
Planning Board. Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Hadik explained why the applicant was required to receive approval
from both Towns’ planning boards, regardless.

Mr. Mitchell said that the plans have been reviewed by the Town engineer, noting they have the second
review letter and have addressed the comments by Mr. Adler from the first letter. He said that they have
submitted the application to the State for the wetlands’ permit, as well as, submitted the application for the
alteration of terrain (AoT) permit. Mr. Mitchell noted that both of those applications are in process and that
they have received comments back from the State. He explained that the State is waiting for a little bit
more documentation from DAR: the language for the conservation easement or deed - for the wetlands
permit, and they need to answer some questions on who is responsible for the maintenance on the
drainage improvements once they are finished — for the AoT permit.

Mr. Mitchell said that the road has all been staked out and the approximate front lot corners have all been
laid out, so the State subdivision can be looked at by the State. He said that they have not submitted that
yet because they need to get some formal process from both towns to verify they are actually in the works.
Mr. Mitchell said that they do have subdivision approval for the lot in Candia, but the lots in Chester have
not been submitted yet; he noted that the application fee is about $18,000. He said that they are not



227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

holding off, they just wanted to get the process going in both communities with a plan that works, before
they submitted the application to NH DES.

Mr. Mitchell stated that, as he said earlier, they do have a traffic study underway. He added that they
initially had a waiver request with the Chester Planning Board not to have a traffic study done; he then
asked to withdraw the request for this waiver.

Mr. Mitchell explained that the application is for 60 single-family house lots, half of the lots would be three
bedrooms and the other half would be four bedrooms. He added that all the roads would be curbed. Mr.
Mitchell said that all the drainage would be a closed drainage system that would drain into the detention
ponds and the treatment swales.

Mr. Mitchell said that the total acres that they had to begin with was 181 acres, with 60 lots of at least an
acre in size, this will leave about 110 acres that will remain as the open space. He said that they have met
with the Chester Conservation Commission on two occasions to discuss the options for open space and they
have decided to deed the land and fee to the Town of Chester for conservation purposes. Mr. Mitchell
explained that the language will be similar to other deeds that have been given to the Town of Chester. He
said that they will be giving it back to the Conservation Commission for review again, as soon as they get
some final wording. Mr. Mitchell noted that the State wanted to have some additional wording in the deed
for protection of mammals, with biologists checking to make sure things are ok.

Mr. Mitchell reiterated that they have decided to go with a deed to the Town so that the land would not be
owned by individual land owners, it would not be an association, it would be Town owned land. He
explained that from an enforcement aspect if somebody is out there cutting down trees they do not own
the property, the Town owns the property.

Mr. Mitchell said that they have two access points: one is coming off a 90-degree bend in Crowley Road
down through here (he indicated the plans), and the other is coming through a lot that was created but
never built on that has about one acre in Candia and two acres in Chester. He stated that the proposal that
they have with the Town of Candia is that the roads and the drainage would be deeded to the Town of
Chester. Mr. Mitchell noted that Chester will be maintaining the entire subdivision but also both the
entrances (the road sections in Candia out to Crowley Road.)

Mr. Mitchell said he would be glad to answer questions.

Mr. Snyder asked about the Town of Chester owning the open space, and if the Conservation Commission is
on board with owning the Open Space.

Ms. Deb Munson, Conservation Commission member, 382 Haverhill Road, said yes.

Mr. Snyder asked about the access that is in Candia being deeded to the Town of Chester.

Mr. Mitchell said that to have certain roads maintained by one town when the land is in an adjoining town is
a common situation. This is accomplished through an agreement. He explained that in this particular case,

the deed makes it more everlasting so it is not just an agreement between the two towns, it is actually
deeded to the Town of Chester so the Town of Candia doesn’t own it and has no interest.



274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

When asked if the right-of-way was part of the Open Space by Mr. Snyder, Mr. Mitchell said that it was not
part of the open space, that it was separate from the open space, but it does go through the open space.

Chairman Sullivan clarified with Mr. Mitchell that he is still making a request for two other waivers.

Mr. Mitchell confirmed they were still requesting waivers for two items. He said that the first waiver
request is for Cape Cod berm curbing instead of the granite vertical curbing.

The Board and Mr. Mitchell discussed Cape Cod berm curbing.

Mr. Snyder made a motion to grant the waiver to allow Cape Cod berm curbing in lieu of vertical granite as
per ordinance; Ms. Richter seconded the motion. Motion approved, 5-0-0.

Mr. Mitchell said that the second and the last waiver is a request for the driveways to slope towards the
road at two percent. He explained the current regulations and he detailed why they are requesting the
waiver.

Mr. Snyder and Mr. Hadik agreed that this waiver needed to be reviewed by Mr. Adler, and Mr. Oleson, the
Chester road agent.

Mr. Snyder noted that this project goes back many years, he requested a review of the past decade of the
project. Mr. Mitchell gave an overview of the project’s history. He ended the review by saying that when
this project is complete, that Crowley Road will be completely shimmed and repaved.

Mr. Hadik pointed out Mr. Mitchell had said that they were going to be working on the traffic study. Mr.
Hadik requested the traffic study include addressing the six identified traffic concerns raised by Candia
residents at the Town of Chester information session, the additional traffic concern regarding Brown Road,
as well as the comments from the preliminary review by SNHPC. Mr. Mitchell said that he does know for
certain that they already have in the scope of work to review Crowley Road, the intersection of Crowley
Road and Chester Road (Candia Road,) the intersection of Crowley Road and Lane Road, and to review Main
Street and Chester Road. He said that they had not decided to go out to Rt. 43 and Main Street, or Rt. 43
and Old Manchester Road, saying that those are both State roads. He noted that maybe something can be
done.

Mr. Hadik said that according to what is in this letter, the intersection of Crowley Road and Chester Road/
Candia Road, there is a line of sight issue that absolutely needs to be addressed. He said that with a current
trip rate of 160 cars per day increased by 571 cars per day, that line of sight issue must be addressed.

Chairman Sullivan invited Sylvia von Aulock, Executive Director SNHPC, and Tom Giffen, Chairman Candia
Planning Board to join the Chester Planning Board at the meeting table.

Ms. von Aulock and Mr. Giffen joined the Board at 8:17 pm.

Mr. Giffen said that he will give a synopsis of where the application stands now with the Candia Planning
Board and what the next step will be. He said that they received an application for a minor subdivision
application. He said that the Candia Planning Board made the determination that this was a development
of regional impact and that a minor subdivision application was not a good fit for the nature of the plan,



321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

thus, they rejected the application that was originally submitted. Mr. Giffen noted that at this stage they
expect to hear back from the applicant with a new application that would be more in line with what they
require for a major subdivision, because now it incorporates what they will need to go through with due
process, with a project of regional impact.

Mr. Snyder noted that this is the perfect area in which to coordinate between the two town’s boards. He
stated that they have a process and look for certain things, and they want to be sure they are not
duplicating things, which is only fair to the applicant.

Mr. Giffen agreed.

Mr. Hadik said that they also want to avoid a situation where one Board assumes the other Board is taking
care of some issue and then it doesn’t get addressed.

Mr. Giffen said that Candia will exercise all due diligence. He stated that they don’t have specific Town
regulations on the books regarding developments of regional impact, therefore, they will be guided by the
RSAs on the subject, and follow the normal due process. Mr. Giffen noted that, obviously, it would be
premature and prejudicial to predict the results of that process, that he cannot do so. He added that he
would like to see good open lines of communication between the two Boards: copy each other on minutes,
copy information requests from the applicant and from the Board; he said that the minutes may be
sufficient to do that but, that if anything happens outside the meeting, then copying them would be
prudent. Mr. Giffen noted that they will do the same. He added that he thinks this will facilitate the
process. Mr. Giffen continued saying that, of course, some of the (?) planning will be intimately involved
because they are the Planning Commission that has jurisdiction over the development of regional impact.

Mr. Giffen pointed out that because of the nature of the water on the property, where it drains to, it may
impact Raymond to some extent. He said that Candia has notified the town of Raymond of the existence of
the proposed project. Mr. Hadik noted that when he saw Mr. Giffen’s efforts he did not duplicate the
process of notifying Raymond.

Mr. Snyder asked how they communicated to Raymond, and what they know.

Mr. Giffen said that they communicated via email. He said that Raymond has a copy of the plans that they
received; they have been advised that it appears that the drainage from the property will affect a body of
water in Raymond off Shattigee Road.

Mr. Snyder asked about traffic.

Mr. Giffen said that without seeing a traffic impact study it is impossible to say what the effect on Raymond
will be. He said that it is conceivable that people might head through Raymond to get to some destination

to the east. Mr. Giffen noted that he believed this would be part of the traffic study.

Ms. von Aulock introduced herself and noted that the SNHPC works with 14 communities, advising them
and working with them on land use and transportation planning issues.

Ms. von Aulock explained that when a declaration of “Development of Regional Impact” is made technically,
according to the RSAs, the SNHPC has the status of an abutter, mostly for notification reasons. She said that



368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

their role is to review the plans at the “regional, 10,000-foot level,” and, on occasion, they will come down a
little closer and get a little bit in the weeds, depending on the issue. Ms. von Aulock said that she may be
sitting here as the director but she has an entire team behind her that has expertise in transportation
planning, land use planning, and that they delve into multiple topics. She pointed out that she had already
provided a preliminary review letter, and she is willing to provide her card and send her comments; she is
happy meet with the applicant if anything is in question. Ms. von Aulock said that there is a lot of
information here. She said that they put this together briefly in the last couple of days. She continued by
saying that they have received phone calls from residents with concerns.

Ms. von Aulock said that they would love to see an aerial photo of the project area, with the proposal
superimposed on it, with the water resources on the site. She said they would like to know the direction of
the run-off so they can get a better understanding. Ms. von Aulock said that in the memo there are quite a
few places that they don’t have enough information; they might have changed their mind or changed an
opinion or added different comments if they had more information.

Ms. von Aulock said that in the memo they discuss the plan set, the traffic impact, and the traffic analysis.
She noted that they get into the geometry of various roads and the sight-distance issues. She said that her
staff went out and measured some of the sight-distances and there are some real concerns.

Ms. von Aulock said that they get into a little bit about boundaries. She explained about once finding an
amazing historic boundary marker, that there may not be one on this site, but, if they exist, people would
want to know about it.

Ms. von Aulock said they discussed the natural resources. She noted that they have access to a variety of
other studies, and they mention those in the memo. Ms. von Aulock said that one of those studies is the
2015 State of NH Wildlife Action Plan that depicts this area as being pretty vulnerable and having quite a bit
of wildlife. She said they talk a little bit about that and how the applicant might be more sensitive to that
and provide a little bit more information about wildlife corridors, so if there can be a slight adjustment in
anything to ensure that the wildlife corridors can remain intact, that can happen early in the process before
they get into a final design.

Ms. von Aulock said that they talked about wetland impacts, and throughout there they also note numerous
easements. She explained that there are four types of easements, as well as the no-cut buffer. She
explained that when you start looking at those together, they have some concerns about the lots and they
will ask for additional information. Ms. von Aulock said that some of it may be because of the way it is
depicted on the plan, some concerns about how the septic reserve areas are shown, and what else is going
on, on the site.

Ms. von Aulock said that before her time at SNHPC, the Commission did a source water protection plan for
the Town of Chester; they looked at the availability of water; she noted that that is discussed in the
preliminary review letter. She said that there is some concern about the yield probability being a bit low in
this area of Chester. Ms. von Aulock said that it makes some sense to talk to the applicant and raise that
concern.

Ms. von Aulock said that this was just a quick review.



414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

Chairman Sullivan asked Ms. von Aulock what she typically sees as a trigger for a review by SNHPC, a 30-lots,
60-lots, or does the configuration of the subdivision have no bearing. Ms. von Aulock said that it can be a
site plan, it doesn’t have to be a subdivision plan. She noted that they were called into Raymond a year and
a half ago and that project had nothing to do with a subdivision plan. Ms. von Aulock said that each
applicant and application is very specific and in this case, they are sort of at the headwaters. She said if you
put on your “watershed protection” hat, this is sort of the headwaters of the Exeter River, this is Fordway
Brook. She noted that it is off the site, she would like to see the plan at 500 scale so one can see what is
going on because it is not just what is going on, on this site; the question is are there impacts off the site.
Ms. von Aulock said that she is sure that the applicant means to ensure that this is a beautiful subdivision
and everything is taken care of, however, it is SNHPC's job as the regional planning commission to look at
what is going on, what might go on, and how can it be prevented from impacting offsite.

Mr. Snyder said that they are appreciative of the thought that has been put into the preliminary review
memo, noting that Ms. von Aulock enumerated many great concerns. He asked how those concerns get
converted into change and action; he asked if it is their responsibility to follow the SNHPC advice in the
memos, do they work directly with the applicant, how do they know when they have made progress and
everyone agrees that they have a good sound plan.

Ms. von Aulock said that there is a variety of wants and needs here: an applicant that would like to create a
plan he would like to sell to future home owners, abutters who want to ensure that their homes are not
impacted in any way, and, the need for the communities to be sure that they are not burdened with a road
that cannot handle this impact. She explained that they are quite willing to work in any way you would like
to, noting that this is one of the first times she has seen more than one planning board working with
another planning board. Ms. von Aulock noted that it is typically difficult for multiple boards to work
together.

Ms. von Aulock said that there are budget constraints. She said that these are recommendations that the
Conservation Commissions in both Towns will be interested in reviewing. Ms. von Aulock said she remains
positive that people will get what they want as close to possible with as little impact as possible.

Ms. von Aulock explained that the SNHPC has an advisory role.

Chairman Sullivan and Ms. von Aulock discussed abutter impact and agreed that the goal is to minimize
impact to the abutters.

Ms. von Aulock reiterated that the SNHPC needs more information about the drainage and run-off impact;
she noted that this is the first she has heard about the potential runoff impact to Raymond.

Mr. Mitchell said that the drainage report has been done, reviewed by DuBois and King and the State.

Mr. Hadik explained that this subdivision will be reviewed by the newly approved Chester Technical Review
Committee (CTRC) to provide feedback from the Chester Police Chief, Fire Chief, Road Agent, Building
Inspector etc.

Ms. von Aulock and the Board discussed the driveway slope regulations.

Chairman Sullivan asked for any Public comment.

10



461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

Mr. Steph Landau, 662 Candia Road, stood to speak at the meeting. He first asked that the speakers and
microphones be checked; he noted that those in the back of the audience could not clearly hear the Board
speaking. Chairman Sullivan noted that that sound issue would be addressed.

Mr. Landau had a few comments and questions. He thanked Ms. von Aulock for mentioning historical Town
boundary markers; Mr. Landau said that he is aware of two historical Town markers, one of which is on the
corner of this property.

Mr. Landau asked what the frontage is on the lots. Mr. Mitchell stated that they are between 130 to 150
feet. Mr. Landau asked the Planning Board to check with the Town'’s attorney; he was concerned that by
the Town’s acceptance of a deed for the 110 acres of open space, it might subvert the Town’s lot-size
regulations. Mr. Snyder agreed there might be a catch-22 situation. He said that Mr. Adler said that it
meets the regulations. Mr. Landau said that he is just asking for the opinion from the Board’s attorney,
saying he knows what has occurred in the past.

Mr. Landau asked that Candia Road in Chester by included in the traffic study. Mr. Snyder said that that
would be included in the traffic study.

Mr. Landau said that he and his wife own one of the abutting properties. He explained that Norton Pond
would be affected by the development and that the pond is entirely in Raymond. Mr. Landau said that
Raymond should be included in the discussion about the subdivision.

Mr. Boyd Chivers, Depot Road, Candia stood to speak at the meeting.

Mr. Chivers asked if there had been any consideration of providing access to the development through two
continuous parcels of land owned by Chester; he explained that Chester is the primary beneficiary of the
subdivision so should use their own resources to provide the access to the development eliminating the
need to use Candia’s Crowley Road. Chairman Sullivan said that the process is in the beginning stages and
that they need to get the traffic study done. Ms. Richter pointed out that the parcels are Town owned land,
meaning conservation land; she noted that she didn’t think they could use that land even if that was what
they wanted.

Chairman Sullivan said that they intend to work with the Town of Candia’s Planning Board and nothing will
be decided on overnight. Mr. Snyder added that he hopes all the people keep coming to the meetings. He
said that the Board is very receptive to public input.

Mr. Chivers asked if the Town of Candia will receive any of the impact fee funds, slated to be paid to
Chester, to defray the expenses associated with the additional traffic on Crowley Road. Chairman Sullivan

said no, that when this has happened in the reverse, they have not received any funds.

Mr. Chivers explained that Crowley Road has a very narrow right-of way and that the residents on Crowley
Road have concerns about this.

Mr. Snyder asked the Candia Road Agent Dennis Lewis for his input.

11



507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

Mr. Lewis said that Crowley Road is one of the Town'’s first roads with a very narrow right-of-way and is very
winding. He said that the road has numerous sight-distance issues. Mr. Lewis said that they have done a lot
of studies and engineering for the last two subdivisions that went in ten years ago, and that the upgrades
that came out of those studies were the maximum that they could get out of the right-of-way. He said that
the stone walls run very close to the road, and those walls are someone’s boundaries. Mr. Lewis said that
there are many issues with determining if those walls are in the correct place.

Mr. Lewis said that the worst sight-distance issue on Crowley Road is when you are coming up Lane Road to
turn onto Crowley Road. He explained that there is a sharp turn in the road, a lot of trees and a stone wall
that follow the edge of the field which would have to be removed to gain sight-distance. Mr. Lewis said that
many of the trees are on the inside of the wall, so they are on private property.

Mr. Lewis addressed deeding the right-of-way into the subdivision. He said that he thought that Chester
should get the deed, so that they maintain the right-of-way.

Mr. Lewis explained that the road is very difficult to plow for snow, the snow rolls back into the road and
the road gets dramatically narrower in winter. He said that the decision of the bus company for Candia
currently is to not have the school bus go down the road.

The length of the road was discussed.

Mr. Giffen asked the road agent what is the narrowest part of Crowley Road. Mr. Lewis said that the
narrowest part of Crowley Road is 18 feet wide, not quite midway headed towards Lane Road.

Ms. Elizabeth Kruse, New Boston Road, Candia, stood to speak and identified herself as a member of the
Candia Conservation Commission.

Ms. Kruse asked if the Open Space, which is to be deeded to Chester, will be open to the Public. She asked
what the purpose of the area will be, and who will hold the easement. Mr. Hadik explained that if the Town
owns the deed to the land then Rockingham County Conservation District would hold the easement and the
perform the monitoring of the property. He said that the easement would be for low impact use of the
property and would allow public access.

Ms. Kruse said that a land trust typically does not accept easements on out-areas on land that gerrymander
around, so she has concern about the out areas that marble in and out of the housing lots that are
proposed. She said that the purpose of the outer area, if it is for wildlife habitat, then you are defeating the
purpose. Chairman Sullivan pointed out that the land is not trapped land, with fences surrounding the land;
the wildlife can move between other parcels. Ms. Kruse said that although wildlife can still move, they are
not encouraged to do so by the nature of the configuration. She said that she hopes that there is some
attention given to the existing wildlife corridors.

Ms. Kruse asked what the impact of the individual septic systems and the artisan wells will have on the
aquifer and the water table; she asked for an analysis of that impact.

Mr. Mitchell said that the Open Space that they have is proposed to be open to the Public, not just Chester,

but Candia. He said that the deed to the Town for the land is for conservation purposes. Mr. Mitchell
explained that the primary goal is for conservation purposes, so there would be protections and restrictions.

12



554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
501
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

He noted that they can’t harvest trees for a managed timber cut, they can only cut trees if it is beneficial to
the wildlife and the habitat, or present a safety hazard.

Mr. Mitchell said that he has talked with the Bear Paw conservation people who hold the easement across
the street on Crowley Road in Candia and the Southeast New Hampshire Land Trust to see if they would
have an interest in holding this Open Space easement, and although they work with large parcels of land
easements, they both indicated that they don’t get involved with Open Space easements.

Mr. Mitchell reiterated that the land would be open to the Public, non-motorized vehicles, with restrictions:
hunting and the discharge of firearms would not be permitted.

Ms. Deb Munson, Haverhill Road, Chester, asked how long it will take to complete the development. She
asked if there would be massive trucks coming in and out of the development hauling materials.

Mr. Mitchell said that the development would be completed in three phases, with a time frame he said of
no shorter than three years. He said that maybe the roads get built in three years, however, all the houses
will not get built in three years.

Mr. Mitchell said that most of the materials that they will need onsite will come out of the road cuts,
creating a balance situation regarding fill requirements. He said that they do not anticipate trucks coming in
and out to haul materials. Mr. Mitchell added that when it comes time to gravel and pave the road, there
will be trucks coming in to do that.

Mr. Royal Richardson, Chester School Board, stood to speak.
Mr. Richardson asked how the school buses will access the road during the first phase.

Mr. Mitchell said that that is something on which they can work with the School Board until the road is a
through-road. He noted that there will be a hammerhead at the end of the first phase of the road, but
acknowledged that he didn’t know if a school bus could turn around. Mr. Mitchell said that the people
using the school bus in Chester may have to come out to Crowley Road until the bus can turn around. Mr.
Richardson said that he had talked to the Superintendent of SAU 15 who said that they don’t allow busses
to turn around on Crowley Road, the road is too narrow. Mr. Richardson explained that unless the road is
built as a loop, absent a second exit, there must be an area there that is large enough to turn around. He
noted that they don’t want thirty or forty cars parked at the end of the road with people dropping their kids
off in the morning (parents don’t want to drop their kids of at the end of the road and leave them in the
dark in the middle of winter, so they all would be parked there.) Mr. Richardson said that they really need
to think things through as to how they are going to deal with the transportation of the children out of this
subdivision, even during phased development.

Mr. Richardson asked if the school would be invited to be part of the CTRC review. Mr. Hadik said yes.
Mr. Jason Gustin, 161 Crowley Road, Candia, stood to speak.
Mr. Gustin noted that he is at “ground zero.” He asked from where the numbers came of an increase of 356

percent from 160 cars per day to 571 per day. Ms. von Aulock said that the numbers came from the SNHPC
transportation planners. She read, “...at build-out the proposed Crowley Woods subdivision would result in

13



601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.

60 new single-family dwelling units. According to the Institution of Transportation Engineers, the average
trip generation for single-family detached housing units on a weekday is 9.52 trips per unit.” She said that
that is the reference that they use, to Google it the acronym is ITE. Ms. von Aulock said that that would give
Crowley Woods at build-out 571 trips per day. She said that the 160 was based on a traffic count that they
had recently done (earlier in 2017.)

Mr. Gustin said that Crowley Road is one of Candia’s oldest roads and designated a scenic road. He
referenced Chester’s Master Plan, “to implement new scenic roads and preserve current scenic roads,”
stating that it is a concern that they are putting 356 percent more cars per day on that road. An audience
member added that this is definitely a scenic road.

Chairman Sullivan said that they would follow the same process, due diligence regardless of where the road
came out, Chester or Candia.

Mr. Snyder made a motion to continue the Public Hearing for subdivision application by the DAR Builders,
LLC 305 Massabesic Street, Manchester, NH, 03104, for a 60-lot subdivision of Map 11, Lots 30 & 30-7 off
Crowley Road, Candia, NH, until August 9, 2017 at 7:15 pm; Ms. Richter seconded the motion. Motion
approved, 5-0-0.

The Public Hearing was closed at 9:21 pm.

Mr. Snyder made a motion to accept subdivision application by Tucker Bay Trust, 37 Coulthard Farm Road,
Scarborough, ME, 04074, for a 2-lot subdivision of Map 7, Lot 21 on Candia Road, Chester, NH, and open the
Public Hearing; Mr. Sederquest seconded the motion. Motion approved 5-0-0.

The Public Hearing was opened at 9:27 pm.

Mr. Kevin Hatch, owner of Cornerstone Survey Associates, came before the Board on behalf of Tucker Bay
Trust. He distributed the subdivision plans.

Mr. Hatch said that the design itself is identical. He noted that a couple of the notes changed and that he
added the drainage plans on sheet #3 and #4 to satisfy Mr. Adler’'s comments.

There was discussion about the correct address. Mr. Hatch said he would correct the title block.

Mr. Hatch explained that the one lot is being divided into two lots: 6.48 and 6.47 acres each. He said that
they have gone to the zoning board and received a variance for the common driveway, and for it to be
allowed to pass through the side setbacks of the two lots. The variance was included as part of the
application.

Mr. Hatch reviewed the plans with the Board.

Mr. Hadik noted that the plan still need a wetlands’ soil scientist seal. Mr. Hatch agreed.

The Board, Mr. Hadik, and Mr. Hatch discussed recording the mylar, and how many sheets would be

needed. Mr. Hadik noted that if only one sheet was going to be recorded, then the rain garden should be
mentioned in the notes on the mylar, and the location should be shown on the mylar. The Board agreed.

14



648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656

657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664

7-12-17 — These minutes are subject to possible revisions/corrections during review at a subsequent
Planning Board Meeting.
Mr. Hatch said that in two weeks he will have a mylar with the signed wetlands’ soil scientist seal.
Mr. Snyder made a motion to continue the Public Hearing for subdivision application by Tucker Bay Trust,
37 Coulthard Farm Road, Scarborough, ME, 04074, for a 2-lot subdivision of Map 7, Lot 21 on Candia Road,
Chester, NH, until July 26, 2017 at 7:15 pm; Ms. Richter seconded the motion. Motion approved, 5-0-0.

Adjournment

Mr. Snyder made a motion to adjourn the meeting; Ms. Richter seconded the motion. Motion
approved, 5-0-0.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:55 pm.
Respectfully submitted,

C. Molly Qualters
Recording Secretary

15



